
 

 
11749755.1 

 

COMBINED QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE 

EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2016 

REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM 

1400 29
TH

 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
Website Address:   www.sacrt.com 

(29th St. Light Rail Station/Bus  38, 67, 68) 

 

 

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement 

Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento 

Regional Transit District.  This single, combined agenda designates which 

items will be subject to action by which board(s).  Members of each board may 

be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during 

individual closed sessions. 

 

ROLL CALL  ATU Retirement Board:  Directors: Wiley, Morin, Niz, De La Torre  
       Alternates: Jennings, Muniz 
 
   IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Ohlson, Burdick 
       Alternates: Jennings, Gallow 
 
   AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Drake, Devorak 
       Alternates: Jennings, Robison 
 
   AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett 
       Alternates: Jennings, Kent 
 
   MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Masui, Thorn    
       Alternates: Jennings, Sanchez-Ochoa 
 

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on 
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to 
the discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public 
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents 
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very 
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them. 

  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

2.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

 

 

                                                              
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Agenda   



 

 
11749755.1 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

3. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

4. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)  

    

      

5. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

6. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

7. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

8. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

9. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

10. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

11. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

12. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees 
Who are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)  

    

      

13. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

14. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

15. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    

      

16. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees 
Who are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

17. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

18. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

19. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve 
Month Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   

    



 

 
11749755.1 

 
 

     

      

20. Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

 

NEW BUSINESS 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

21. Information: Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Equity Asset Class for 
the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

22. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter 
Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)  

    

      

23. Information: Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans 
Experience and Valuation Studies and Resulting Actuarially 
Determined Contribution Rate (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

24. Information:  Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension 
Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

25. Information: Update on Status of Trust Document (ALL). (Bernegger)     

      

26. Information: Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for 
Proposals (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

27. Information: Update on 2016 Work Plan (ALL). (Bonnel)     

       

28. Information: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

29. Resolution: Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company 
(CHUBB) for Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). 
(Bonnel) 

    

      

30. Resolution: Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett 
and Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services 
Under the Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

31. Resolution: Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) 
Employees who are members of the Administrative Employees 
Association Group (AEA). (Bonnel) 

    

      

32. Resolution: Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement 
Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who 
are members of the Management and Confidential Employee Group 
(MCEG). 
 

    

      

      

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURN 



 

 
11749755.1 

 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of the 
Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest 
to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.   
 

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held.  An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional Transit’s 
building at 1400 – 29th Street and posted to RT’s website at www.sacrt.com.  

 

Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human Resources 
Manager at 916-556-0280 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board Meeting. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for public 
inspection at 1400 29th Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry. 



Item 1 

1 
12015925.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AEA Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 

 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Drake, Bennett and Alternate Devorak were present. Director Wiley 
was absent. Alternate Hansen was absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AEA Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.  
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 16, 2015 Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 
 
2.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 

30, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
11. Resolution: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2016 Meeting Calendar 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Items 1, 2, and 11. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Items 
1, 2, and 11 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and  
Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
reordering was: 12-16, 18, 20, 21, 17, 19. 
 
12. Information Fiduciary Training provided by Hanson Bridgett (ALL). 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Lance Kjeldgaard, fiduciary counsel contracted through the board’s 
Legal Counsel, Hanson Bridgett LLP to provide a fiduciary responsibility and liability training. 
 



Item 1 

2 
12015925.1 

MCEG Alternate Thorn left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  
 
IBEW Alternate Gallow left the meeting at 10:04 a.m.   
 
13. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for 

the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for the International 
Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ted Simpson from DFA, who provided the performance results for 
the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class. 
 
Director Bennett noted that he would like a list of the stocks that are owned in the portfolio. Mr. 
Simpson noted that he would send the list to Brent Bernegger to distribute to the Boards. 
 
14. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE 

Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Linda Ng from State Street Global Advisors, who presented the 
performance results for the Domestic Large Capitalization and International Equity Index Funds 
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Bennett remarked that the Boards may want to modify having reports from index funds 
provided during the meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett noted that the fiduciary training 
provided earlier discussed the duty of care and being a prudent expert and the Boards’ need to 
hear from all fund managers to be in a position to consider whether or not they are serving their 
purpose.  
 
15. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2015. 
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 15. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 15 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
16. Resolution: Authorizing Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to authorize the execution of plan trust 
documents. Ms. Bonnel noted that the plan trust documents were distributed to each Retirement 
Board Chair electronically. 
 
Director Bennett asked if the trust language presented for approval would result in losing the 
right to buy securities directly (Section 3.3) and if the Boards would be limited to investing in 
firms with a national reputation (Section 3.6). Director Bennett also asked if both points are in 
the final trust document the board is being asked to approve. Legal Counsel Anne Hydorn with 



Item 1 

3 
12015925.1 

Hanson Bridgett responded that both issues were addressed in the trust document and the 
boards would be able to invest with firms of regional reputation and would not lose the ability to 
directly invest.  
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 16. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 16 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
18. Resolution: Adopting Procurement Policy and Procedures (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel stated that an updated version of the Procurement Policy and Procedures was 
distributed at each board member’s seat on the dais because some changes were made since 
distribution of the board packet, and that this revised version was the document recommended 
by staff for adoption. 
 
Ms. Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to provide an update on the changes to the document. 
Valerie Weekly noted that the language provided in the prior version allowed for the Finance 
Department or Human Resources Department to complete some of the smaller procurements 
without going through the Procurement Department. The updated version reflects that all 
procurements will go through the Procurement Department.    
    
Director Drake moved to approve Item 18 for adoption of the resolution and updated attachment 
provided at the meeting. Director Morin seconded the motion. Item 18 was carried unanimously 
by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
20. Resolution: Adopting Policy on Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel presented Jamie Adelman and Valerie Weekly to provide information on adopting 
a policy on the allocation of staff costs.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that in March 2015, Staff presented issue papers on the roles and 
responsibilities of various District staff related to the tasks associated with the overall 
administration of RT’s Pension Plans. In June, Staff began tracking times associated with 
performance of those responsibilities. Staff also completed benchmarking on various similarly 
sized pension plans and determined the total number of staff needed to manage similarly sized 
plans.  
 
Staff contacted Cheiron to see what the implications of charging additional administrative cost to 
the plans might be. Ms. Adelman noted that there would be no impact on staff members’ 
employment status, employer identification, nor the funded status of any plan. There also would 
be no increase in employee contributions. The administrative costs are attributed to each plan 
after the contribution of the normal cost, which is what the employees contribute.   
 
Based on the benchmarking results, Staff proposes that the Boards adopt the Policy on 
Allocation of Staff Costs. 
 
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked how long the $25,000 per quarter would be charged. 
Ms. Adelman responded that the cost allocation would continue for the rest of the life of the 
Plans.  MCEG Retirement Board Director Mattos asked if the cost would be reflected as an 
increased expense when the actuarial contribution rate is determined. Ms. Adelman responded 
in the affirmative. 
   



Item 1 

4 
12015925.1 

Director Drake moved to adopt Item 20. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 20 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
21. Resolution: Adopting Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) Policy and 

Procedure (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented information on adopting a policy for processing QDROs.  
 
Legal Counsel has advised that it is in the best interest of the Retirement Plans and their 
participants for the Retirement Boards to adopt procedures that will help Staff efficiently and 
effectively process and implement the domestic relations orders it receives.  
 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend that all of the Boards adopt the proposed policy and 
procedures for processing QDROs. 
  
Director Drake asked about the process if someone seeks a QDRO and the member in question 
is part of two different plans. Ms. Weekly confirmed that the QDRO has to address both plans, 
and both have to be named in the court records.   
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Item 21. Director Bennett seconded the motion. Item 21 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Bennett, and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
17. Information: Implementation of Electronic Distribution of Quarterly Retirement Board 

Packages (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel introduced Valerie Weekly to present information on the implementation of 
electronic distribution of quarterly retirement board packages.  
 
Valerie Weekly noted that Staff has reviewed the current processes associated with the collation 
and distribution of the agenda packages for Quarterly and Special Retirement Board Meetings 
and has determined that there is the opportunity for potential cost and time savings by adopting 
an electronic distribution process similar to that of RT’s governing Board. Staff anticipates 
having the changes in place for the March 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting. 
  
ATU Retirement Board Director Niz asked if the board packages would still be available five or 
so days prior to the board meeting. Ms. Weekly noted that staff expects the time frame to 
remain the same.  
 
19. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities for Pension Administration (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett outlined the accomplishments of the 
Retirement Boards in 2015. 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 



Item 1 

5 
12015925.1 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AEA Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:18 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    James Drake, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Russel Devorak Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 for
the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
December 31, 2015.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist of a
Statement of Plan Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended December 31, 2015 (Attachment 2), and a
year-to-date Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position (Attachment 3).

The Statement of Plan Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the amounts in
the following categories: cash, money market, and securities.  This statement also provides
amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position includes activities in the following categories:
investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses, benefit
contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the Retirement
Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance with the approved
rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The Director is required to report
asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for
one or more of the following reasons:

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due to
the District.  A payable or receivable net amount of the monthly required contribution

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
2



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/27/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 31,
2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

(required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by the annual
actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the Salaried Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the three
months ended December 31, 2015. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary of Plan
activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension contributions to the
Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.  This schedule also
lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended December 31, 2015.  The
Salaried Plan received $80,275.56 from the District as the result of the net cash activity between
the pension plan expenses and the required pension contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the Salaried Plan’s Asset Allocation as of December 31, 2015.
This statement shows the Salaried Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted allocation

percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports differ in
that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the pension fund’s
inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The “Net Difference”
amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different valuations for the same
securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and the
Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report classifies
gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff classifies gains
from trades and litigation income in the Pension Plan’s unaudited Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of “Interest, Dividend,
& Other Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees.  Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended December 31,
2015 as compared to their benchmarks.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well as
any transfer of employees or plan assets from the ATU/IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan during the
three months ended December 31, 2015.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
2





















REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 1/27/16

Subject: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended June 30,
2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month Period Ended
June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

In accordance with California Government Code Section 7504, the Retirement Plans are required
to have an annual audit performed. Gilbert Associates, Inc. conducted the Plans’ audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  The standards require that the auditors
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the Plans’ financial statements are
free of material misstatements.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Plans were combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balance of investments
owned by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership
as determined by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian.

The financial results are shown on a comparative basis.  As noted in the report (Attachment 1),
the combined net position held in trust for pension benefits increased $5,379,733 or 2.18% from
the beginning of year balance of $241,322,621 to the end of year balance of $246,702,354.  The
audit confirmed that the District made 100% of its actuarially determined contribution of
$17,682,871.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 labor negotiations resulted in a new tier of employees in
each of the bargaining groups. Notes to the Financial Statement 1, Description of the Plans,
pages 7 through 12, detail the changes to Plan provisions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
3



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED 

 JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 PAGE 
 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF i 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statements of Plan Net Position - 2015 3 
 
Statements of Plan Net Position – 2014 4 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position - 2015 5 
 
Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position – 2014 6 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
Description of the Plans 7 

 
Significant Accounting Policies 12 

 
Contribution Requirements 13 

 
Cash and Investments 14 

 
Net Pension Liability 22 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – ATU/IBEW 26 

 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Salaried 26 
 
Schedule of District Contributions – ATU/IBEW 27 

 
Schedule of District Contributions – Salaried 29 
 
Schedule of Investment Returns – ATU/IBEW and Salaried 30 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES  

 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – ATU/IBEW 31 
 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses – Salaried 32 

 
 
 

i 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
MEMBERS OF THE RETIREMENT BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

 
 

Amalgamated Transit Union Local 256 
Ralph Niz, Chairperson 

Corina De La Torre, Member 
Steve Muniz, Alternate 

 
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245 

Eric Ohlson, Chairperson 
Lorrin Burdick, Member 
Stevie Gallow, Alternate 

 
Administrative Employees Association 

James Drake, Chairperson 
Mark Bennett, Member 

Russel Devorak, Alternate 
 

American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-CIO 
Charles Mallonee, Chairperson 

Rob Hoslett, Member 
Tim Kent, Alternate 

 
Management and Confidential Employees 

Mike Mattos, Chairperson 
Alane Masui, Member 
Roger Thorn, Alternate 

 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Andy Morin, Common Chairperson 
Michael R. Wiley, Member 

Steve Hansen, Alternate 
 

Assistant Secretary, Acting 
Donna Bonnel, Director of Human Resources 

 
Legal Counsel 

Shayna M. van Hoften, Partner 
Anne C. Hydorn, Partner 

Hanson Bridgett 
 

Finance Department 
Les Tyler, Chief Financial Officer, Acting 

Brent Bernegger, Director of Finance/Treasury 
Jamie Adelman, Senior Accountant 

 
Human Resources Department 

Valerie Weekly, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator 
 

i 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the ATU/IBEW Plan’s and Salaried Plan’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Plan’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net 
position of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees as 
of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in fiduciary net position for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The basic financial statements of the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2014, were audited 
by other auditors whose report dated November 7, 2014, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.

 
(Continued) 

 
1. 

schmidtla
Color - No address



Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedules of Changes 
in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedules of District Contributions, and the Schedule of 
Investment Returns, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that governmental accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental 
Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements. 
 
The accompanying 2015 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2015 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the 2015 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
2015 basic financial statements or to the 2015 basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the 2015 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The accompanying 2014 Schedules of Investment and Administrative Expenses are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2014 basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied by other auditors in the audit of the 2014 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 2014 basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and whose report dated November 7, 2014 expressed an opinion that such information was fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the 2014 basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
December 30, 2015 

 
 

 
2. 

schmidtla
Crowe Horwath



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 110,296,011$       49,875,031$       160,171,042$     
Fixed income securities 67,050,762           26,496,478         93,547,240         

Total investments 177,346,773         76,371,509         253,718,282       

Cash and short-term investments 2,888,256             1,209,251           4,097,507           

Receivables
Securities sold 447,809                197,273              645,082              
Interest and dividends 166,280                68,825                235,105              
Other receivables and prepaids 58,825                  165,256              224,081              

Total receivables 672,914                431,354              1,104,268           

   Total assets 180,907,943         78,012,114         258,920,057       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 8,391,320         3,339,493       11,730,813         
Accounts payable 410,569            76,321            486,890              

Total liabilities 8,801,889             3,415,814           12,217,703         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 172,106,054$       74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  3 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
 

ATU/IBEW Salaried Total
Assets

Investments, at fair value:
Equity securities 102,436,610$     43,662,164$       146,098,774$     
Fixed income securities 67,330,781         26,610,171         93,940,952         

Total investments 169,767,391       70,272,335         240,039,726       

Cash and short-term investments 9,766,996           3,926,522           13,693,518         

Receivables
Securities sold 1,412,085           563,042              1,975,127           
Interest and dividends 290,759              116,727              407,486              
Other receivables and prepaids 36,492                92,712                129,204              

Total receivables 1,739,336           772,481              2,511,817           

   Total assets 181,273,723       74,971,338         256,245,061       

Liabilities
Securities purchased payable 10,226,692     4,041,748       14,268,440         
Accounts payable 549,358          104,642          654,000              

Total liabilities 10,776,050         4,146,390           14,922,440         

Net position restricted for pension benefits 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$     

 
(Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the Plans are presented on 
pages 26 and 27.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  4 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2015 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $      10,343,620  $        7,335,308 17,678,928$       
Member                   3,682                      261 3,943                  

Total contributions 10,347,302         7,335,569           17,682,871         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments            3,147,172            1,523,789 4,670,961           
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,208,131               925,197 3,133,328           
Investment expenses              (745,797)              (316,850) (1,062,647)         

Net investment income 4,609,506           2,132,136           6,741,642           
Total additions          14,956,808            9,467,705 24,424,513         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          13,157,985            5,502,144 18,660,129         
Administrative expenses               190,442               194,209 384,651              

Total deductions 13,348,427         5,696,353           19,044,780         

Net increase in plan net position 1,608,381           3,771,352           5,379,733           

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 170,497,673       70,824,948         241,322,621       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 172,106,054$     74,596,300$       246,702,354$     

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  5 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR  
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 
 

 ATU/IBEW  Salaried Total
Additions

Contributions:
Employer  $        9,711,107  $        6,609,083 16,320,190$       
Member                 22,425                   1,678 24,103                

Total contributions 9,733,532           6,610,761           16,344,293         
Investment Income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments          20,970,171            8,631,373 29,601,544         
Interest, dividends, and other income            2,394,445               964,719 3,359,164           
Investment expenses              (732,797)              (298,448) (1,031,245)         

Net investment income 22,631,819         9,297,644           31,929,463         
Total additions          32,365,351          15,908,405 48,273,756         

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants          12,877,177            5,664,400 18,541,577         
Administrative expenses               230,365               176,367 406,732              

Total deductions 13,107,542         5,840,767           18,948,309         

Transfers in/(out) of plans (174,166)            174,166              -                         

Net increase in plan net position 19,083,643         10,241,804         29,325,447         

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
Beginning of fiscal year 151,414,030       60,583,144         211,997,174       

Net position restricted for pension benefits - 
End of fiscal year 170,497,673$     70,824,948$       241,322,621$      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  6 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees who are Members of Amalgamated 
Transit Union (ATU) Local 256 and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 1245 (the 
ATU/IBEW Plan) is a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering contract employees of Sacramento 
Regional Transit District (the District).  Participants should refer to their respective ATU/IBEW Plan 
agreements for more complete information. The ATU Plan and the IBEW Plan are accounted for by the District 
as one Plan (collectively, the “ATU/IBEW Plan”).  The ATU/IBEW Plan is reported as a pension trust fund in 
the District’s financial statements. 

Salaried Plan 

The Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (the Salaried Plan) is a 
single employer defined benefit pension plan covering full or part-time employees in the following employee 
groups: Administrative Employees’ Association (AEA), Management and Confidential Employees’ Group 
(MCEG), and Members of the American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees, Local 146, AFL-
CIO (AFSCME). AFSCME is further split into two groups AFSCME-Technical and AFSCME-Supervisors.  
Participants should refer to the Salaried Plan agreement for more complete information.  The Salaried Plan is 
reported as a pension trust fund in the District’s financial statements. 

Plan Tier Definition – As a result of labor negotiations and the court ruling on the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act, a new tier to both the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans were created. The Tier effective 
date was directly affected by labor negotiations and whether the union/employee group was under a current 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical unions were bound by a current MOU. Whereas, the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors had 
not settled negotiations and were not bound by a current MOU; therefore, PEPRA was required to be 
implemented for these groups.  

• ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – Technical - Tier 1 for the ATU/IBEW Plan and AFSCME – Technical 
union consists of all employees hired on or before December 31, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2015.  

• AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors - Tier 1 for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME – 
Supervisors consists of all employees hired on or before December 30, 2014, Tier 2 consists of all 
employees hired on or after December 31, 2014.  

Tier 1 is closed to new entrants as all newly hired employees will be placed into the respective Tier 2 plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  7 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

PEPRA Employees 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 created new pension rules for employees hired 
after January 1, 2013. ‘PEPRA employees’ were hired under both the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan 
and the employees are required to contribute 50% of the normal cost of their plan. The benefits under PEPRA 
were reduced in an effort to reduce the pension liability of local agencies in the state of California.  

 
On October 4, 2013 Assembly Bill 1222 provided a temporary exemption to the January 1, 2013 PEPRA law 
for employees of Transit Agencies. Along with changes to employee retirement benefits, this 
exemption eliminated employee contributions through January 1, 2015. Therefore all contributions received 
were refunded in November 2013 and the employees hired between January 1, 2013 and October 4, 2013 were 
included in the Tier 1 Plans. On September 28, 2014 Assembly Bill 1783 was signed by Governor Brown which 
extended the Districts PEPRA exemption to January 1, 2016.  
 
On December 30, 2014 a court ruling was released in which PEPRA became a requirement for Transit Agencies 
in the state of California. The ruling indicated that if a bargaining group was within a current MOU, PEPRA 
would not apply until the expiration of said MOU. As of December 30, 2014 the ATU, IBEW, and AFSCME – 
Technical groups were under a current MOU. For all other employee groups not under current contract (MCEG, 
AEA, and AFSCME – Supervisors), PEPRA applies to all new hires as of December 30, 2014. 

General Provisions ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 

Contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are authorized or amended by the Retirement Board based 
on an actuarial basis.  The authority under which benefit provisions are established and amended rests with the 
District’s Board of Directors as a result of labor negotiations.  Assembly Bill 1064, effective January 1, 2004, 
mandates that the Retirement Boards be comprised of equal representation of management and Bargaining 
Group employees.  The Retirement Board shall consist of not more than 4 members and 2 alternates.  Two (2) 
voting members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the District’s Board of Directors and two (2) voting 
members and one (1) alternate shall be appointed by the ATU, IBEW, AEA, AFSCME, and MCEG member 
groups. 

The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans provide defined pension, disability, and death benefits to employees who 
are members of the ATU, IBEW, AEA, MCEG, AFSCME-Technical, and AFSCME-Supervisors.  

ATU/IBEW Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, at June 30, consisted of: 

2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 507          493          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 42            39            
Current active members 696          708          

1,245       1,240       
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  8 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Salaried Plan membership for both Tier 1 and Tier 2, as of June 30, consisted of: 
 

 
2015 2014

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 227          221          
Terminated members entitled to but not yet collecting benefits 45            47            
Current active members 250          252          

522          520          
 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
 Table 1 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 1 employees for each of the employee 

groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 

Table 1 

 TIER 1 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU MOU 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 5 - 100% 

5 - 20%                               
6 - 40%                                    
7 - 60%                                        
8 - 80%                               

9 - 100% 

9 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 27.55% 27.55% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 32.04% 

Employee 
Contribution 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Sick leave sell 
back towards 
pension calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

See  
Table 3 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  9 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 
 

Table 2 below presents a summary of the retirement benefits for Tier 2 employees for each of the employee 
groups represented by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans. 
 
Table 2 

TIER 2 ATU/IBEW Plan Salaried Plan 

 Employee 
Unions/Groups ATU IBEW AFSCME - 

Technical 
AFSCME - 
Supervisors AEA MCEG 

Plan Terms MOU MOU MOU PEPRA PEPRA PEPRA 

Vesting Period: 
Years of Service - 
% Vested 

10 - 100% 10 - 100% 

5 - 10%                               
6 - 30%                                    
7 - 50%                                        
8 - 70%                               
9 - 90%                             

10 - 100% 

5 - 100% 5 - 100% 5 - 100% 

Employer 
Contribution 24.55% 26.05% 30.54% 26.29% 26.29% 26.29% 

Employee 
Contribution 3.0% 1.5% to 

4.5% 1.5% to 4.5% 1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

1/2 Normal 
Cost 

Vacation sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Sick sell back 
towards pension 
calculation 

Allowable Allowable Allowable Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Not 
Allowable 

Retirement Age 
Eligible and 
Multiplier 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

See  
Table 4 

Disability 
Retirement 
Multiplier 

Equal to applicable retirement age multiplier or 2% if age and service are not met. 
Vesting required 

  10 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

 
The retirement ages, years of service and pension calculation multipliers vary by employee union/group. The 
specific benefits for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plan Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees are outlined below in 
Table 3 and Table 4, respectively: 

 
Table 3 Table 4

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

Employee 
Unions/ Groups Age

Years of 
Service Multiplier

ATU 55 25 2.00% ATU 55 25 2.00%
56 26 2.10% 56 26 2.10%
57 27 2.20% 57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30% 58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% 59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50% 60 30 or more 2.50%

IBEW 55-59 25-29 or more 2.00% IBEW 55-62 N/A 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% 63 N/A 2.10%

64 N/A 2.20%
Salaried 55 25 2.00% 65 N/A 2.30%

(AEA, MCEG, 56 26 2.10% 66 N/A 2.40%
and AFSCME) 57 27 2.20% 67 N/A 2.50%

58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40% AFSCME- 55 25 2.00%
60 30 or more 2.50% Technical 56 26 2.10%

57 27 2.20%
58 28 2.30%
59 29 2.40%
60 30 or more 2.50%

AEA, MCEG, 55 N/A 1.30%
and AFSCME - 56 N/A 1.40%

Supervisors 57 N/A 1.50%
58 N/A 1.60%
59 N/A 1.70%
60 N/A 1.80%
61 N/A 1.90%
62 N/A 2.00%
63 N/A 2.10%
64 N/A 2.20%
65 N/A 2.30%
66 N/A 2.40%
67 N/A 2.50%

Tier 2Tier 1

 

  11 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PLANS (Continued) 

The benefits for both Tier 1 and Tier 2 members begin at retirement and continue for the participant’s life with 
no cost of living adjustment. The participant can elect to receive reduced benefits with continuing benefits to a 
beneficiary after death. 

Disability Benefits – A participant is eligible for a disability benefit if the participant is unable to perform the 
duties of his or her job with the District, cannot be transferred to another job with the District, and has submitted 
satisfactory medical evidence of permanent disqualification from his or her job.  Members are required to be 
vested in their respective union or employee group to qualify for disability retirement.  The disability benefit is 
equal to the retirement allowance, as defined by the ATU/IBEW or Salaried Plan, multiplied by service accrued 
through the date of disability.  The disability benefit cannot exceed the retirement benefit.  The benefit begins at 
disability and continues until recovery or for the participant’s life unless the participant elects to receive reduced 
benefits with continuing benefits to a beneficiary after death. 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit – A participant’s surviving spouse is eligible for a pre-retirement death benefit 
if the participant is vested, based on the respective bargaining agreements.  The pre-retirement death benefit is 
the actuarial equivalent of the normal retirement benefit, as if the participant retired on the date of death.  The 
death benefit begins when the participant dies and continues for the life of the surviving spouse or until 
remarriage. 

Administration – The ATU/IBEW Plan is administered by the ATU/IBEW Plan’s Retirement Board.  All 
expenses incurred in the administration of the ATU/IBEW Plan are paid by the ATU/IBEW Plan. The Salaried 
Plan is administered by the Salaried Plan’s Retirement Boards.  All expenses incurred in the administration of 
the Salaried Plan are paid by the Salaried Plan. 

Plan Termination – Should the ATU/IBEW or the Salaried Plan be terminated, the Plan’s net position will first 
be applied to provide for retirement benefits to retired members.  Any remaining net position will be allocated 
to other members, oldest first both active and inactive, on the basis of the actuarial present value of their 
benefits. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Basis of Accounting – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans 
are reported as pension trust funds which report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members 
and beneficiaries of the defined benefit pension plans.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are accounted for on 
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  

 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans have adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, as their 
source of accounting and reporting principles.  The District’s contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due pursuant to formal commitments or 
contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ agreements. 

Cash and Short-Term Investments – The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans consider all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less to be short-term investments. 

 

 

  12 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Investments – Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices (or, if not available, at 
estimated fair value determined by third-party pricing services).  Realized gains or losses on the sale of 
investments are recorded on the trade date as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value at the 
beginning of the year, or cost if acquired during the year.  Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of 
investments includes net unrealized market appreciation and depreciation of investments and net realized gains 
and losses on the sale of investments during the period.  Interest income includes dividends and interest paid on 
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments.  The investment assets for the ATU/IBEW and the Salaried 
Plans are combined into one commingled investment portfolio.  The balances of investments owned by the 
plans are calculated based on a percentage of ownership as determined by the Plans’ custodian, State Street. 

 
Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans administrator to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 

New Pronouncements – For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans did not 
implement new GASB pronouncements as they did not apply to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ financial 
activity or were immaterial.  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans implemented GASB 
pronouncement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB 25.  This statement replaces 
the requirements of Statements No. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans”, and No. 50, “Pension Disclosures”, as they relate to pension plans 
that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. For defined benefit pension plans, this 
Statement establishes standards of financial reporting for separately issued financial reports and specifies the 
required approach to measuring the pension liability of employers and nonemployer contributing entities for 
benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pension liability), about which information is required to be 
presented. The implementation of the GASB statement resulted in certain changes in presentation but did not 
have a material impact on the Plans’ financial Statements.  

There are currently no future pronouncements that will be applicable to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Retirement Plans financial statements.  
 

3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS  
 
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions.  
Contribution rates for retirement benefits are determined using the entry age normal cost method.  During the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, the District made 100% of the actuarially determined 
contributions to the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans of $17,678,928 and $16,320,190, respectively, for all 
employees.    

 
TIER 1 EMPLOYEES 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan was 
27.55% and 26.27%, respectively, of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the 
actuarially determined rate for the Salaried Plan was 32.04% and 29.95%, respectively, of covered payroll. No 
contributions are required by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ members pursuant to each respective 
bargaining agreement for employees hired before January 1, 2015. 

  13 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
3. CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

TIER 2 EMPLOYEES 
 
As of January 1, 2015, all new employees were required to contribute to their pension based upon the terms of 
the bargaining groups MOU or based on PEPRA.  
 
ATU employees are required to contribute 3.00% of their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially 
determined rate for the ATU members was 24.55% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
IBEW employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in the third year of 
service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the IBEW members was 
26.05% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total contribution by Tier 2 employees 
of the ATU/IBEW Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $3,682. 
 
AFSCME – Technical employees are required to contribute 1.5% the first year of service increasing to 4.5% in 
the third year of service and beyond. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AFSCME - 
Technical members was 30.54% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  Members of AEA, 
MCEG, and AFSCME – Supervisors are required to contribute 50% of normal cost which is currently 5.75% of 
their annual salary. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the AEA, MCEG, and AFSCME 
- Supervisors members was 26.29% of covered payroll for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The total 
contribution by Tier 2 employees of the Salaried Plan as of June 30, 2015 was $260.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 all new employees were required to contribute 50% of the normal cost 
of the pension benefit under the terms of PEPRA. The employee contributions for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2014 were 5.75% or $22,425 and 4.75% or $1,678, for the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan, 
respectively. The employer portion of the actuarially determined rate for the ATU/IBEW Plan and Salaried Plan 
was 18.18% and 21.61%, respectively, of covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  
 
The PEPRA related contribution rates for June 30, 2015 and 2014 were actuarially determined on April 20, 
2015 and July 9, 2013, respectively, using the member data from actuarial valuations of the Plans as of June 30, 
2014 and 2012, respectively. 
 

4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the reported amount of cash and short-term investments of the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans was $4,097,507 and $13,693,518, respectively.  The amount was collateralized with securities 
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District’s name on behalf of the Retirement Plan. 
 

  14 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENTS  
 

An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
investments. This Policy focuses on the continued feasibility of achieving, and the appropriateness of, the Asset 
Allocation Policy, the Investment Objectives, the Investment Policies and Guidelines, and the Investment 
Restrictions. The Retirement Boards have the authority to amend the asset allocation targets as well as establish 
and amend investment policies. The following was the Plans adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30: 

 

Asset Class 2015 2014

Domestic Equity Large Cap 32% 30%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 8% 7%
International Equity Developed 19% 18%
International Equity Emerging Markets 6% 5%
Domestic Fixed Income 35% 40%

Target Allocation

 
 

All of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments are reported at fair value measured by quoted market 
prices. 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  15 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ 
Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that 
address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. 

 

Authorized Investment Type Maximum 
Maturity (1)

 Minimum 
Rating (3)

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer
Cash None N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Bills None N/A None None
Agency Discount Notes None N/A None None
Certificates of Deposit None N/A None None
Bankers Acceptances None N/A None None
Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Asset-Backed Commercial Paper None A2/P2 None None
Money Market Funds and Bank Short-Term 
Investment Funds (STIF) None N/A None None
Repurchase Agreements None N/A None None
U.S. Government and Agency Securities None N/A None None
Credit Securities/Corporate Debt (4) None N/A None None
Securitized Investments (5) None N/A None None
Emerging Markets None N/A None None
International Fixed Income Securities None N/A None None
Other Fixed Income Securities (6) None N/A None None
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Real Estate Investment Trust N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Depository Receipt N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%
Stocks N/A N/A 25% (2) 5%

 
(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 

75% and 125% of the benchmark. 
(2) No more than 25% of the fair value on the purchase cost basis of the total common stock portfolio (equity 

securities) shall be invested in a single industry at the time of purchase. 
(3) The investment managers shall maintain a minimum overall portfolio quality rating of “A” equivalent or 

better at all times (based on market-weighted portfolio average). Minimum quality (at purchase) must be at 
least 80% Baa or above.  

(4) Credit Securities and Corporate Debt include: debentures, medium-term notes, capital securities, trust 
preferred securities, Yankee bonds, Eurodollar securities, floating rate notes and perpetual floaters, 
structured notes, municipal bonds, preferred stock, private placements (bank loans and 144(a) securities), 
and EETCs. 

(5) Securitized investments includes: agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed 
securities (144(a) securities), and commercial mortgage-backed securities. 

 (6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, 
swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
  16 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

INVESTMENT RISK FACTORS 
 
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments.  Such factors as interest rate risk, credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and foreign currency risk may affect both equity and fixed 
income securities.   

 
INTEREST RATE RISK 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of fixed income securities will decline because of rising interest rates.  
The prices of fixed income securities with a longer time to maturity, measured by duration, tend to be more 
sensitive to changes in interest rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter duration. 
 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plans’ investments at June 30, 2015.  
 

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                      934,271$           3,333,281$        6,468,937$        10,736,489$      
Corporate Bonds 295,879            6,661,195          3,725,380          4,714,205          15,396,659        
Municipal Bonds -                        -                         476,583             246,142             722,725             
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                        254,983             2,199,814          19,363,859        21,818,656        
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 9,188,966         11,542,035        6,288,225          4,259,693          31,278,919        
Asset-Backed Securities -                        -                         2,123,916          11,469,876        13,593,792        
Total 9,484,845$       19,392,484$      18,147,199$      46,522,712$      93,547,240$      

Maturity in Years

 
The following table provides information about the interest rate risks associated with the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Plan’s investments at June 30, 2014.  

Less More Fair
than 1 1 – 5 6 – 10 than 10 Value

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations -$                    363,661$          2,977,041$       7,637,213$       10,977,915$     
Corporate Bonds 1,139,096       6,470,913         3,527,154         3,763,174         14,900,337       
Municipal Bonds -                      -                        438,356            681,598            1,119,954         
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -                      2,735                2,311,794         20,467,290       22,781,819       
U.S. Government Issued Obligations 6,980,614       14,397,839       8,803,837         3,399,803         33,582,093       
Asset-Backed Securities -                      -                        1,513,343         9,065,491         10,578,834       
Total 8,119,710$     21,235,148$     19,571,525$     45,014,569$     93,940,952$     

Maturity in Years

 
In accordance with the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy, investments may include mortgage 
pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, asset-backed securities, callable bonds and 
corporate debts that are considered to be highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. 

  17 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS 
 
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s) are bonds that represent claims to specific cash flow from large 
pools of home mortgages.  The streams of principal and interest payments on the mortgages are distributed to 
the different classes of CMO interests. 
 
CMO’s are often highly sensitive to changes in interest rates and any resulting change in the rate at which 
homeowners sell their properties, refinance, or otherwise pre-pay their loans.  Investors in these securities may 
not only be subjected to such prepayment risk, but also exposed to significant market and liquidity risks. 
 
CORPORATE DEBT – RANGE NOTES  
 
Range notes are securities which pay two different interest rates depending on whether or not a benchmark 
index falls within a pre-determined range as structured per the note.  If the benchmark index rate does not fall 
within the pre-determined range, the note will not earn the coupon rate for that time period.  With this pre-
determined range feature, range notes are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.  As of June 30, 2015, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $422,100.  As of June 30, 2014, the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held range notes with a fair value of $446,243.   
 
MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES 
 
These securities are issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs), which are a group of financial 
services corporations created by the United States Congress.  The GSEs include: the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (Fannie Mae), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association (Freddie Mac), and the Federal Home 
Loan Banks.  Another institution that issues these securities is the Government National Mortgage Association 
(Ginnie Mae).  These securities are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations because they are subject to early 
payment.  In a period of declining interest rate, the resulting reduction in expected total cash flows affects the 
fair value of these securities. 

 
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 
 
Asset-backed securities generate a return based upon either the payment of interest or principal on obligations in 
an underlying pool.  The relationship between interest rates and prepayments make the fair value highly 
sensitive to changes in interest rates. 
 
CALLABLE BONDS 
 
Although bonds are issued with clearly defined maturities, an issuer may be able to redeem, or call, a bond 
earlier than its maturity date.  The Plans must then replace the called bond with a bond that may have a lower 
yield than the original bond.  The call feature causes the fair value to be highly sensitive to changes in interest 
rates.   As of June 30, 2015, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans held callable bonds with a fair value of 
$4,008,874.  As of June 30, 2014, the ATU/IBEW Plan and the Salaried Plan held callable bonds with a fair 
value of $3,450,766. 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the risk that a bond issuer or other counterparty to a 
debt instrument will not fulfill its obligation to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that negative 
perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause security prices to decline.  The 
circumstances may arise due to a variety of factors such as financial weakness, bankruptcy, litigation and/or 
adverse political developments. 

  18 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
A bond’s credit quality is an assessment of the issuer’s ability to pay interest on the bond, and ultimately, to pay 
the principal.  Credit quality is evaluated by one of the independent bond-rating agencies, for example Moody’s 
Investors Services (Moody’s).  The lower the rating the greater the chance, in the rating agency’s opinion, the 
bond issuer will default, or fail to meet their payment obligations.  Generally, the lower a bond’s credit rating, 
the higher its yield should be to compensate for the additional risk. 
 
Certain fixed income securities, including obligations of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by 
the U.S. government, are not considered to have credit risk. 
 
For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans were in adherence with 
the credit risk provisions of the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines which require a 
minimum overall portfolio quality rating and a minimum credit rating at the time of purchase. 
 
The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2015. 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
Not Applicable 164,268,550$          63.72%

Not Rated 56,033,893 21.73%
Aaa 16,157,305 6.27%
Aa1 458,580 0.18%
Aa2 1,216,262 0.47%
Aa3 351,245 0.14%
A1 1,384,654 0.54%
A2 2,328,805 0.90%
A3 3,630,204 1.41%

Baa1 3,776,868 1.46%
Baa2 2,901,380 1.13%
Baa3 2,492,310 0.97%
Ba1 807,401 0.31%
Ba2 671,768 0.26%
Ba3 98,024 0.04%
B1 127,875 0.05%
B2 610,069 0.24%

Caa3 441,415 0.17%
Ca 9,043 0.00%

WR 50,138 0.02%

257,815,789$          100.00%

 

 
 

  19 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The following table provides information on the credit ratings and fair value associated with the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Plans’ investments as of June 30, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in a single 
issuer. 

The investment policies of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans state that an investment in each domestic or 
international equity fund managers’ securities of a single issuer shall not exceed 5% (at cost) of the value of the 
portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the ATU/IBEW and Salaried 
Plans did not have domestic or international equity fund managers’ investments in a single issuer that exceeded 
5% (at cost) of the value of the portfolios and/or of the total outstanding shares. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
the Plans held more than 5% of the Plans’ investments and more than 5% of the Plans’ fiduciary net position in 
the following fixed-income securities investment. 
 

2015 2014
Federal National Morgtage Association 16,273,430$         21,236,745$         
Federal Home Loan Bank 12,907,787           13,963,182           
US Treasury 17,046,158           22,002,362           

 
 

Investment Rating Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio
 Not applicable  $     159,792,291 62.98%

Not rated           57,905,099 22.82%
Aaa           14,259,652 5.62%
Aa1                977,535 0.39%
Aa2             1,771,440 0.70%
Aa3                354,555 0.14%
A1             1,448,258 0.57%
A2             1,520,943 0.60%
A3             2,409,478 0.95%

Baa1             4,660,839 1.84%
Baa2             4,642,177 1.83%
Baa3             1,235,670 0.49%
Ba1                116,350 0.05%
Ba2                161,895 0.06%
Ba3                827,823 0.33%
B1                616,190 0.24%
B2                132,728 0.05%

Caa1                503,608 0.20%
Caa3                386,167 0.15%
Ca                  10,546 0.00%

Total Cash & Investments 253,733,244$     100.00%

  20 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
4.    CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy 
does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits 
or investments. The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment securities are not exposed to custodial credit 
risk because all securities are held by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ custodian bank in the District’s name. 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment or a deposit.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investment policy states international equity 
securities shall be comprised of American Depository Receipts (ADR) of non-U.S. companies, common stocks 
of non-U.S. companies, preferred stocks of non-U.S. companies, foreign convertible securities including 
debentures convertible to common stocks, and cash equivalents. 

 
The following table provides information on deposits and investments held in various foreign currencies, which 
are stated in U.S. dollars.  The ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans do have foreign currency deposits and 
investments which may be used for hedging purposes. 

 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the U.S. dollar balances organized by investment type and currency denominations 
for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans are as follows: 
 

2015 2014
Asset Class Foreign Currency U.S. Dollars U.S. Dollars 
Cash

EURO 430$            528$            
Japanese Yen 87                -               
Swiss Franc 6,367           -               

Total 6,884$         528$            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  21 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

ATU/IBEW Plan 

The components of the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 222,705,517$         
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)          
ATU/IBEW net pension liability 50,599,463$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 77.28%  

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year  
      setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  22 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.   NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%.  The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation). 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.    

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the ATU/IBEW Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.65 percent, as well as what the ATU/IBEW Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current 
rate: 
 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 244,369,554$    222,705,517$    204,025,934$    
Plan fiduciary net position (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)     (172,106,054)    
Net pension liability 72,263,500$      50,599,463$      31,919,880$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 70.43% 77.28% 84.35%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  23 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued)  
 

Salaried Plan 
 
The components of the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan at June 30, 2015, were as follows:  

Total pension liability 116,410,752$         
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)            
Salaried net pension liability 41,814,452$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 64.08%  

 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and using update procedures to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the pension plan’s fiscal year-end: 
 
  Inflation    3.15% 
  Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
  Salary increases   3.25%, plus merit component  
  Investment Rate of Return   7.65%, net of investment expense 
  Post-retirement mortality  Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3  
      year setback for females 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2011. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized 
in the following table:  
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equity Large Cap 8.90%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 10.15%
International Equity Developed 9.80%
International Equity Emerging 11.45%
Domestic Fixed Income 3.05%  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  24 



RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT  
DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

   
 
5.    NET PENSION LIABILITY (continued) 

 
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.65%. The discount rate was decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 to 7.65% from 7.75% as of June 30, 2014. The reduction is due to a 
review of potential investment returns over the next ten to twenty year horizon. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the District will continue to contribute to the Plan based on an 
actuarially determined contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual Normal Cost, the expected 
administrative expenses, and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a 
level percentage of payroll over a closed period (18 years remaining as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation) 
 
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension 
Liability.     

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Salaried Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 
percent, as well as what the Salaried Plans net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Total pension liability 129,004,006$     116,410,752$     105,681,770$    
Plan fiduciary net position (74,596,300)        (74,596,300)       (74,596,300)       
Net pension liability 54,407,706$       41,814,452$       31,085,470$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 57.82% 64.08% 70.59%

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the 
terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation.  Actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of plan assets. 

 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effect of 
legal or contractual funding limitations.   
 
 

  25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $        5,753,143  $       5,599,479 
Intrest          16,384,487         15,740,342 
Difference between expected and actual returns          (2,941,777)                        -   
Changes of assumptions            1,621,574                        -   
Transfers out - Salaried Plan                        -               (174,166)
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions        (13,157,985)        (12,877,177)

Net change in total pension liability            7,659,442           8,288,478 

Total pension liability - beginning 215,046,075      206,757,597      
Total pension liability - ending 222,705,517$    215,046,075$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 10,343,620$      9,711,107$        
Contributions - member 3,682                 22,425               
Net investment income 4,609,506          22,631,819        
Transfers out - Salaried Plan -                     (174,166)           
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (13,157,985)       (12,877,177)      
Administrative expense (190,442)            (230,365)           

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,608,381          19,083,643        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 170,497,673      151,414,030      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 172,106,054$    170,497,673$    

Net pension liability - ending 50,599,463$      44,548,402$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 77.28% 79.28%

Covered employee payroll 37,950,269$      38,857,668$      

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 133.33% 114.65%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF
ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
 
 

Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65% 

 
 
 

 26 



 

2015 2014

Total pension Liability
Service Cost  $       3,476,103  $              3,321,337 
Transfers In - ATU/IBEW Plan                        -                       174,166 
Interest (includes interest on service cost)           8,434,365                  7,978,675 
Difference between expected and actual returns             (753,076)                              -   
Changes of assumptions              930,863                              -   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions          (5,502,144)                (5,664,400)

Net change in total pension liability           6,586,111                  5,809,778 

Total pension liability - beginning 109,824,641      104,014,863            
Total pension liability - ending 116,410,752$    109,824,641$          

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 7,335,308$        6,609,083$              
Contributions - member 261                    1,678                       
Transfers in - ATU/IBEW Plan -                    174,166                   
Net investment income 2,132,136          9,297,644                
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (5,502,144)        (5,664,400)               
Administrative expense (194,209)           (176,367)                  

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,771,352          10,241,804              

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 70,824,948        60,583,144              
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 74,596,300$      70,824,948$            

Net pension liability - ending 41,814,452$      38,999,693$            

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 64.08% 64.49%

Covered employee payroll 23,022,281$      22,008,809$            

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 181.63% 177.20%

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SALARIED EMPLOYEES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

 
Notes to schedule: In fiscal year 2015, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from lowering the discount 
rate from 7.75% to 7.65%

 27 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $ 10,344  $  9,711  $  8,694  $  7,885  $  6,809  $ 7,426  $ 6,937  $ 7,681  $ 7,088  $ 6,227 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution     10,344      9,711      8,694      7,885      6,809     7,426     6,937     7,681     7,088     6,227 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     37,950    38,858    37,110    38,558    38,343   43,626   44,916   44,718   42,897   41,284 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 27.26% 24.99% 23.43% 20.45% 17.76% 17.02% 15.44% 17.18% 16.52% 15.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245

 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013 (to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Blue Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.     

 28 



 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actuarially determined contribution  $   7,335  $  6,609  $  5,800  $  4,580  $  3,718  $ 4,269  $ 3,820  $ 4,132  $ 3,694  $ 2,564 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution       7,335      6,609      5,800      4,580      3,718     4,269     3,820     4,132     3,694     2,564 
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $         -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -    $       -   
Covered-employee payroll     23,022    22,009    19,627    19,105    19,466   22,602   21,115   21,929   21,363   21,217 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 31.86% 30.03% 29.55% 23.97% 19.10% 18.89% 18.09% 18.84% 17.29% 12.08%

Note: Beginning in FYE2015, payroll amounts are based on actual total payroll of the District. In previous years the schedule used covered payroll which is different than actual payroll and there   
contributions as a percentage of covered payroll will differ from what was actually contributed. 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
SALARIED EMPLOYEES

 
 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Valuation Date   7/1/2013(to determine FY14-15 contribution) 
Timing    Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated based on the actuarial valuation one year prior to the  
    beginning of the plan year 
 
Key methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age 
Amortization method  Level percentage of payroll, closed 19 year period as of 6/30/2013 
Asset valuation method  5-year smoothed market 
Discount Rate   7.75% 
Amortization growth rate  3.25% 
Price inflation   3.25% 
Salary Increases   3.25%, plus merit component on employee classification and years of service 
Mortality    Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined White Collar Mortality, 3 year setback for females  
 
Other information: 
A complete description of the methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ending June 30, 2015, can be found in the July 1, 2013 
actuarial valuation report.  

 29 



 

2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 3.25% 15.64%

Note: Information prior to 2014 was not available.

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245
AND SALARIED EMPLOYEES

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 30 



 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

 
 
 

 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF 

ATU LOCAL 256 AND IBEW LOCAL 1245 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 

 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 180,559$     169,601$     
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 147,872       146,791       
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 108,578       113,462       
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 110,147       108,346       
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 13,553         13,583         
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 14,749         13,472         
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 80,658         78,529         
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 89,681         89,013         

Total 745,797$     732,797$     

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 87,848$       151,242$     
Sacramento Regional Transit District Plan Administration 37,744         -                   
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 34,805         44,649         
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,126         23,603         
Information Services Technical Support 408              375              
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300              5,250           
United Parcel Service Shipping 13                18                
Sacramento Occupational Medical Group Medical Evaluation -                   3,010           
Callan Associates Training Workshop -                   1,081           
Other Misc 198              1,137           

Total 190,442$     230,365$     

 
 
 

 

 31 



 

RETIREMENT PLANS FOR SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
SALARIED EMPLOYEES  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 
 
 

Investment Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015 2014

Metropolitan West Asset Management, L.L.C. Asset Management 76,740$         69,461$         
Boston Partners Investment Management Asset Management 62,886           60,081           
Atlanta Capital Management Co. Asset Management 46,215           46,407           
JP Morgan Investment Management, Inc. Asset Management 46,848           44,327           
SSgA S&P 500 Asset Management 5,759             5,560             
SSgA MSCI EAFE Asset Management 6,275             5,517             
Callan Associates, Inc. Investment Advisor 34,142           31,871           
State Street Bank and Trust Company Custodian Services 37,985           35,224           

Total 316,850$       298,448$       

Administrative Expenses:

Vendor Names Type of Services 2015  2014

Hanson Bridgett Consulting Services 107,517$       117,416$       
Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Administration 37,744           -                 
AON Risk Services, Inc. Fiduciary Insurance 29,013           23,603           
Cheiron EFI Actuarial Services 18,920           30,276           
Information Services Technical Support 406                -                 
CALAPRS Dues & Training Course 300                2,750             
United Parcel Service Shipping 2                    18                  
Callan Associates, Inc. Training Workshop -                 1,081             
Other Miscellaneous 307                1,223             

Total 194,209$       176,367$       

 

 32 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

03/16/16 Retirement Action 01/29/16

Subject: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG).
(Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 02/26/16
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan for
Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller's Report for the Retirement Plan
for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

The financial data for the annual State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial
Transactions Report is prepared in accordance with California Government Code Section 7504.
This statute requires all state and local retirement systems to annually submit audited financial
statements of their Pension Plans to the State Controller’s Office by the close of each calendar
year. The State Controller’s Public Retirement Systems Financial Transactions Report
(Attachment 1) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was filed on December 30, 2015.












	- 03.16.16 Retirement Board Quarterly Combined Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	IP #1 [HB edits] 12-16-15 AEA Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.5-9)
	IP #2 Admin Reports AEA (salaried).pdf (p.10-20)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - Salary#2 AEA.pdf (p.1-3)
	03-16-16 Administrative Reports - Salary Attachments 1-9.pdf (p.4-12)

	IP #3 Audit Report AEA.pdf (p.21-58)
	03-16-16 Audit Report IP.pdf (p.1-2)
	03-16-16 Audit Report Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-39)
	CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
	An annual Board-adopted policy, the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Policy), governs the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ investments. This Policy focuses on the conti...
	For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 3.25% and 15.64%, respectively. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment perfo...
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans’ Retirement Boards. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Investment Objectives and Policy that address interest rate risk, credit...
	(1) The fixed income portion of the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Plans shall be limited in duration to between 75% and 125% of the benchmark.
	(6) Other Fixed Income Securities includes: Fixed income commingled and mutual funds, futures and options, swap agreements, and reverse repurchase agreements.
	4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
	INTEREST RATE RISK
	CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
	CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK






